
 Meeting Minutes 

November 4, 2014  

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

 

Meeting Minutes November 4, 2014 

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

1 

PLANNING BOARD 

RINDGE, NEW HAMPSHIRE  

November 4, 2014 

DATE:  November 4, 2014   TYPE: Public Meeting   APPROVED:  11/18/14 

TIME:  7:00   pm 

CALL TO ORDER:        
ROLL CALL MEMBERS:  Chairman Hank Whitney, Vice Chairman Phil Simeone, Sam Bouchie,  

ROLL CALL ALTERNATES:  Holly Koski 

ABSENT:  Roberta Oeser, Charlie Eicher, Jonah Ketola, Bruce Donati 

EX OFFICIO:  
PLANNING DIRECTOR (Interim):   Kirk Stenersen 

PLANNING SECRETARY:  Susan Hoyland 

APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATES:   Holly Koski for Bruce Donati 

OTHERS PRESENT   Michael Chaisson, Greg Hodgson 

 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Call to order and Roll Call by the Chairman Hank Whitney 

 

Approval of Minutes 

  
 1.  October 21, 2014 

 

MOTION:  Phil Simeone moved to approve the minutes of October 21, 2014 as written.  Holly 

Koski seconded the motion.  Vote 3-0-1   Sam Bouchie abstained. 

 

    

New Business/ Public Hearings  

 

 1.  CONSIDERATION OF an application for a Minor Subdivision submitted by Thomas 

and Diane Hession.  The property is located at Tax Map 4, Lot 8 at 180 Old Ashburnham Road in 

the Residential Agricultural District.   The applicant is seeking approval for a three lot subdivision. 

 

Interim Planning Director Kirk Stenersen addressed the Board as to the completeness of this 

application.  He said that since his memo of October 29, 2014, the applicant has submitted additional 

information which included a topographic plan and the location of test pits.  Mr. Stenersen said that 

two items are still outstanding which include a note on the plan for compliance with zoning and the 

tree line and foliage lines on the new lot 8-3.  Kirk Stenersen said that this application is 

substantially complete and that the two missing items could be addressed as conditions of approval.  

 

Phil Simeone asked if the road going off of Old Ashburnham Road would access these lots.  Kirk 

Stenersen said that access will be off of Old Ashburnham Road and that two lots will share a 



 Meeting Minutes 

November 4, 2014  

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

 

Meeting Minutes November 4, 2014 

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

2 

common driveway.  Hank Whitney said that if one of those lots were sold, there would need to be an 

agreement for maintenance of the common driveway, which would need to be registered at Cheshire 

County Registry of Deeds.   

 

Michael Chaisson (representing the applicant) said that he had spoken with VSA Surveyors as to the 

requested changes to the preliminary plan.  He said that Al Vorce has retired and is bringing in 

someone on weekends only to assist with projects.  There was not enough time between our request 

for additional information and tonight’s meeting for Mr. Vorce to make the changes on the plans.  

Mr. Chaisson said that all changes will be made and asked if the board would be willing to make 

these conditions of approval.  Mr. Chaisson said that Lot 1 is currently being built on (the building 

permit is on the entire parcel) and that the state subdivision approval has been received.   

 

MOTION:  Phil Simeone moved to accept the application for a minor subdivision submitted by 

Thomas and Diane Hession as substantially complete.  Sam Bouchie seconded the motion.  Vote:  4-

0-0 
 

Chairman Whitney opened the public hearing.   

 

Kirk Stenersen said that the proposed minor subdivision is located in the Residential District.  There 

are no public infrastructures or utilities proposed.  The existing parcel (Lot 8) is 750,868 square feet 

(17.238 acres). 

 

1) The proposed lots are as follows: 

 

 Lot#: Area (sq. ft.): Area (acres): Frontage (ft.): 

 8-1 131,484 sq. ft.  3.018 acres 250.99 ft. 

 8-2 223,054 sq. ft. 5.121 acres 251.01 ft. 

 8-3 396,330 sq. ft. 9.098 acres 501.14 ft. 

 

2) Lots 8-1 and 8-2 are to be accessed via a shared driveway (existing) off of Old Ashburnham 

Road.  Lot 8-3 is to be accessed via an existing driveway off of Old Ashburnham Road. 

 

Phil Simeone said there were no real wetlands on this property.  Sam Bouchie said that this 

application meets area and frontage requirements.  Phil Simeone asked if there was a garage on the 

lots.  Michael Chaisson said that there were two outbuildings on this property.  He said they would 

likely be demolished.   

 

Greg Hodgson said he is the director of Toah Nipi and was curious about this project.  He said that 

Toah Nipi may be interested in purchasing this property.  He said that Toah Nipi has 180 acres in 

Rindge and 100 acres in Ashby, MA mostly conservation land.  He said there are not many people 

on this pond; there is one other home owner and the camp’s property and the Hession’s property.  

Phil Simeone invited Mr. Hodgson to come to the table and view the plans.  Mr. Hodgson said that 

he saw a “for sale” sign go up today and wanted to know what was for sale.  Mr. Chaisson said that 

if they get their subdivision approval, that lot 1 and the house they are building on it will be for sale.  



 Meeting Minutes 

November 4, 2014  

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

 

Meeting Minutes November 4, 2014 

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

3 

Mr. Hodgson said this change has implications.  They are a camp, there is some noise but it is a quiet 

pond overall.   

 

As there were no further comments, Chairman Whitney closed the public hearing.   

 

Interim Planning Director Kirk Stenersen outlined the following conditions: 

 
1) A note is to be added to the plan as to the compliance of the proposed lots with zoning requirements. 

 

2) Monumentation (iron pins) shall be set at all new lot corners. 

 

3) All applicable governmental permits shall be obtained including but not limited to: 

 

a. NHDES subdivision approval for Lot 8-1. (The subdivision approval number should be shown on the 

plan) 

b. NHDES shore land permit (for any work proposed within 250 feet of the shore land) of Pecker Pond. 

 

4) Prior, during and after recording of the decision, the applicant shall be made aware that any conditions placed 

on this subdivision plan through other governmental or permitting agencies are hereby included in this approval. 

 

5) The foliage lines need to be shown for new lot 8-3 as per section V.2.B.1 of the Subdivision Regulations. 

6) A driveway agreement needs to be recorded for the proposed common shared driveway between lots 8-1 and 8-

2. 

7) This subdivision plan is subject to the Town of Rindge Impact Fee Ordinance. Impact Fees shall be collected 

prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  
 

Michael Chaisson asked about impact fees.  Kirk Stenersen said that the theory is that every new 

house that is built in town creates more stress on town services.  He said that the theory behind the 

impact fee is to offset those costs to the schools, public safety and recreation departments.  Planning 

Director Kirk Stenersen said that currently, the impact fee for a single family home is $5726.00.  

Sam Bouchie said he was surprised that Mr. Chaisson did not know about the impact fees.  Phil 

Simeone said that normally that is discussed at the time of the building permit, but perhaps, because 

this property already had a home on it, that he would not be subject to those fees for that particular 

property.   

 

MOTION:  Phil Simeone moved to grant approval of this subdivision with the seven conditions.  

Holly Koski seconded the motion.  Vote:  4-0-0 

 
1) A note is to be added to the plan as to the compliance of the proposed lots with zoning requirements. 

 

2) Monumentation (iron pins) shall be set at all new lot corners. 

 

3) All applicable governmental permits shall be obtained including but not limited to: 

 

a. NHDES subdivision approval for Lot 8-1. (The subdivision approval number should be shown on the 

plan) 

b. NHDES shore land permit (for any work proposed within 250 feet of the shore land) of Pecker Pond. 

 



 Meeting Minutes 

November 4, 2014  

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

 

Meeting Minutes November 4, 2014 

HW, PS, SB, HK, KS, SH 

 

4 

4) Prior, during and after recording of the decision, the applicant shall be made aware that any conditions placed 

on this subdivision plan through other governmental or permitting agencies are hereby included in this approval. 

 

5) The foliage lines need to be shown for new lot 8-3 as per section V.2.B.1 of the Subdivision Regulations. 

6) A driveway agreement needs to be recorded for the proposed common shared driveway between lots 8-1 and 8-

2. 

7) This subdivision plan is subject to the Town of Rindge Impact Fee Ordinance. Impact Fees shall be collected 

prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy.  
 

 

 

 2.  Notice of Voluntary Merger, Theodore B. Covert, Map 45 Lots 94 and 93, located on 

John Ave and Pine Ave.  

 

Planning Director Kirk Stenersen said that in reviewing Mr. Covert’s request to merge these lots, it 

appears that he does not own one of the lots. Chairman Hank Whitney asked if Mr. Covert knows 

this.  Kirk Stenersen said he will be informed as to what he needs to do to move forward on this 

request.   

 

g. Reports of Officers and Subcommittees 

 

Phil Simeone said that he had informed the Town Gown that Kirk Stenersen would be replacing Phil 

as the representative to that committee.  Phil Simeone said that he has since revisited that decision 

and decided that he might as well stay on until the end of his term on Planning Board.  Kirk 

Stenersen said he is fine with it either way.   

 

   

h. Planning Office Report 

  

Kirk Stenersen said that Susan Hoyland would like to take a vacation week.  She has been working 

for us for over two years and has not taken any time off.  The Board discussed the coverage of the 

office and Chairman Hank Whitney said that he had no problem closing the office for a day or two 

and having Kirk Stenersen and Tina Eaton cover the other days. 

 

Chairman Hank Whitney said he will be leaving early tomorrow morning and will be out of town 

until Friday.   

  

 

Adjourned at 7:30 pm 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

 

 

Susan Hoyland 

Planning Secretary 




